1995

## Wisden v. Dobson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## **JURISDICTION**

This appeal is taken from the 27 December 1994 ORDER AND JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL pursuant to Respondent Dobson's 26 July 1994, MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION, the Honorable James L. Shumate, presiding.

Pursuant to the granting of Respondent's pre-answer MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION from the District Court, Plaintiff appealed to the Utah Court of Appeals, which has appellate jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to the Utah Judicial Code, UCA §78-2a-3, and Article 1, Section 12, Utah State Constitution.

The Utah Court of Appeals thereafter certified this case to the Utah Supreme Court.

Pursuant to the authority vested in the Utah Supreme Court, this case was then poured-over to the Court of Appeals for disposition on 18 May 1995.

## **ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL**

**POINT #1.** DID THE DISTRICT COURT ERR IN GRANTING RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS?

### **STANDARD OF REVIEW**

The Standard of Review considered under a Rule 12(b) motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim, is that all reasonable inferences made with regard to the original complaint (*a PETITION FOR A WRIT OF PROHIBITION in this case*) are to be construed as true and in a light most favorable to the Petitioner.

1. MOUNTEER v. UTAH POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, 823 P.2d 1055 (Utah 1991)

**POINT #2. WAS PETITIONER DENIED DUE PROCESS IN THE JUSTICE COURT AND THEREFORE ENTITLED, IN THIS CASE TO EXTRAORDINARY RELIEF, IN THE FORM OF PROHIBITION, FROM THE DISTRICT COURT?**

### **STANDARD OF REVIEW**

This issue on review may appear odd at first blush, however, Appellant's case revolves on his challenge to the lack of jurisdiction of the Justice Court. Appellant's appeal to this Court is from his denial of a petition in the District Court for prohibition against said Justice Court.

1. ATWOOD v. COX, 55 P.2d 377 (Utah 1936)
2. BARBER v. CALDER, 522 P.2d 700 (Utah 1974)
3. DOWNEY STATE BANK v. MAJOR-BLAKENEY CORPORATION, 545 P.2d 507 (Utah 1976)
4. DYNAPAC, INC. v. INNOVATIONS, INC., 550 P.2d 191 (Utah 1976)
5. LANCASTER v. UTAH BOARD OF PARDONS, 869 P.2d 945 (Utah 1994)
6. MARTIN v. NELSON, 533 P.2d 897 (Utah 1975)
7. McRAE & DeLAND v. FELTCH, 669 P.2d 404 (Utah 1983)
8. REES v. SCOTT, 329 P.2d 877 (Utah 1958)
9. Utah State Constitution, Article 1, Section 1
10. Utah State Constitution, Article 1, Section 7
11. Utah State Constitution, Article 1, Section 11
12. Utah State Constitution, Article 1, Section 14
13. Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 3(b)
14. Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rules 6(b) & 6(c)(3)
15. Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 12(b)(5)
16. Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rules 4(h) & 4(k)



**VERBATIM RECITALS OF CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS,  
STATUTES, ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS**

**Utah Constitution**, Article 1, Section 1

All men have the inherent and inalienable right to enjoy and defend their lives and liberties; to acquire, possess and protect property; to worship according to the dictates of their consciences; to assemble peaceably, protest against wrongs, and petition for redress of grievances; to communicate freely their thoughts and opinions, being responsible for the abuse of that right.

**Utah Constitution**, Article 1, Section 7

No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law.

**Utah Constitution**, Article 1, Section 11

All courts shall be open, and every person, for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation, shall have remedy by due course of law, which shall be administered without denial or unnecessary delay; and no person shall be barred from prosecuting or defending before any tribunal in this State, by himself or counsel, any civil cause to which he is a party.

**Utah Constitution**, Article 1, Section 14

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers and effects against unreasonable searches and seizures shall not be violated; and no warrant shall issue but upon probable cause supported by oath or affirmation, particularly describing the place to be searched, and the person or thing to be seized.

**Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure**, Rule 3(b)

3(b) Whenever service is required or permitted to be made upon a party represented by an attorney, the service shall be made upon the attorney, unless service upon the party himself is ordered by the court. Service upon the attorney or upon a party shall be made in the manner provided in civil actions.

**Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure**, Rule 6(b) & 6(c)(3)

6(b) If it appears to the magistrate that the accused will appear on a summons and there is no substantial danger of a breach of the peace, or injury to persons or property, or danger to the community, a summons may issue in lieu of a warrant of arrest to require the appearance of the accused. If the defendant is a corporation, a summons shall issue. A warrant of arrest may issue in cases where the defendant has failed to appear in response to a summons or citation or thereafter when required by the court. When a warrant of arrest is issued, the magistrate shall state on the warrant:

(1) the amount of bail; and

(2) if the magistrate determines that the accused must appear in court, the name of the law enforcement agency in the county or municipality with jurisdiction over the offense charged.

6(c)(3) The warrant shall be executed by the arrest of the defendant. The officer need not have the warrant in his possession at the time of the arrest, but upon request shall show the warrant to the defendant as soon as practicable. If the officer does not have the warrant in his possession at the time of the arrest, he shall then inform the defendant of the offense charged and of the fact that the warrant has been issued. The summons shall be served as in civil actions, or by mailing it to the defendant's last known address.

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rules 4(h) & 4(k)

**4(h) Manner of proof.** In a case commenced under Rule 3(a)(1), the party serving the process shall file proof of service with the court promptly, and in any event within the time during which the person served must respond to the process, and proof of service must be made within ten days after such service. Failure to file proof of service does not affect the validity of the service. In all cases commenced under Rule 3(a)(1) or Rule 3(a)(2), the proof of service shall be made as follows:

- (1) If served by a sheriff, constable, United States Marshal, or the deputy of any of them, by certificate with a statement as to the date, place, and manner of service;
- (2) If served by any other person, by affidavit with a statement as to the date, place, and manner of service, together with the affiant's age at the time of service.

**4(k) Date of service to be endorsed on copy.** At the time of service, the person making such service shall endorse upon the copy of the summons left for the person being served, the date upon which the same was served, and shall sign his or her name thereto, and, if an officer, add his or her official title.

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 12(b)(5)

**12(b) How presented.** Every defense, in law or fact, to claim for relief in any pleading, whether a claim, counterclaim, cross-claim, or third-party claim, shall be asserted in the responsive pleading thereto if one is required, except that the following defenses may at the option of the pleader be made by motion: (1) lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3) improper venue, (4) insufficiency of process, (5) insufficiency of service of process, (6) failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, (7) failure to join an indispensable party. A motion making any of these defenses shall be made before pleading if a further pleading is permitted. No defense or objection is waived by being joined with one or more other defenses or objections in a responsive pleading or motion or by further pleading after the denial of such motion or objection. If a pleading sets forth a claim for relief to which the adverse party is not required to serve a responsive pleading, he may assert at the trial any defense in law or fact to that claim for relief. If, on a motion asserting the defense numbered (6) to dismiss for failure of the pleading to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, matters outside the pleading are presented to and not excluded by the court, the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment and disposed of as provided in Rule 56, and all parties shall be given reasonable opportunity to present all material made pertinent to such a motion by Rule 56.

## **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

### **Nature of the Case**

Plaintiff sought extraordinary relief pursuant to Rule 65B(e), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Utah's governmental immunity is not applicable in this case as a tort remedy is not being sought.

### **Course of the Proceedings and Disposition in the Court Below**

1. On 5 July 1994, Petitioner/Appellant caused to be filed his PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION (*Record, page 1*)
2. Respondent/Appellee was served the SUMMONS and PETITION on 6 July 1994, by one (1) Gary Stubbs, a local process server. (*Record, page 27*)
3. The RETURN OF SERVICE was filed with the Fifth Judicial District Court on 11 July 1994. (*Record, page 28*)
4. On or about 26 July 1994, Respondent caused to be filed MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION, arguing that Lancaster v. Utah Bd. of Pardons, 869 P.2d 945 (Utah 1994) held that "trial court can dismiss writ of prohibition that fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted despite lack of express authority to dismiss frivolous petitions under subsection (e) of Rule 65B." Respondent claimed "Petitioner [had] not alleged facts showing that the justice court 'violated some portion of [Rule 65B].'" (*Record, page 29*)
5. On 1 August 1994, Petitioner filed his OPPOSITION TO RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION AND MOTION FOR RULE 11 SANCTIONS. Petitioner argued that his Respondent's motion was off point. The issue was not improprieties of the lower Justice Court pursuant to Rule 65B, but that the Justice Court lacked jurisdiction pursuant to Rules 3 & 6 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure and Rules 3 & 4 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. (*Record, page 31*)

6. On 15 August 1994, Plaintiff filed a NOTICE TO SUBMIT FOR HEARING on Respondent's MOTION TO DISMISS. (**Record, page 34**)

7. On 10 August 1994, Judge James L. Shumate set a hearing on Petitioner's IMPECUNIOUS LITIGANT AFFIDAVIT, and a hearing was convened on Wednesday, 17 August 1994, strictly for the purpose of establishing Petitioner's impecuniosity.. (**Record, page 37, ¶ #8**)

8. At the hearing referred to in ¶ #7 immediately above, Judge Shumate prefaced his calling the hearing because of rumors he had allegedly heard regarding a "jackpot" winnings in excess of \$5,000, by the Petitioner, "sometime" previous to that date. (**Record, page 37, ¶ #9**)

9. At the 17 August 1994, hearing, Judge Shumate refused to allow Petitioner to testify, based on his firmly held religious belief to not swear to the limiting provision to "tell the truth," and Judge Shumate dismissed Petitioner's PETITION in this case. (**Record, page 39, ¶¶ #20 through #24**)

10. On 18 August 1994, Petitioner filed his MOTION TO RECONSIDER DISMISSAL. (**Record, page 45**)

11. On 22 August 1994, Judge Shumate caused to be filed a MEMORANDUM DECISION AND JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL based on Petitioner's firmly held religious belief to not swear to the limiting provision to "tell the truth." (**Record, page 55**)

12. On 6 September 1994, Petitioner caused to be filed a NOTICE TO SUBMIT FOR DECISION, on Petitioner's MOTION TO RECONSIDER DISMISSAL (**Record, page 57**)

13. On 8 September 1994, Judge Shumate caused to be filed a MEMORANDUM DECISION which contained an Order staying his previous 22 August 1994, dismissal of this case, until 10 October 1994, for Petitioner to pay the filing fee. (**Record, page 59**)

14 On or about 19 September 1994, the filing fee was paid. (**Not paginated to the Record**)

15 On 20 September 1994, Petitioner caused a NOTICE TO RESUBMIT FOR HEARING to be filed for Respondent's MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION. (**Record, page 61**)

16. On 22 September 1994, Judge Shumate caused to be entered into the court docket the following note: "MOTION TO DISMISS WRIT OF PROHIBITION IS GRANTED. BRENT ROWE TO SUBMIT ORDER AND JUDGMENT.' MR. ROWE NOTIFIED BY TELEPHONE.". (**Record, page 67**)

17. On 13 October 1994, not having received any advisory from the Court with regards to Respondent's MOTION TO DISMISS, Petitioner filed a MOTION FOR AN ORDER FROM WHICH TO APPEAL (**Record, page 64**)

18. On or about 25 October 1994, counsel for the Respondent, O. Brenton Rowe, caused to be filed an AFFIDAVIT OF PROBABLE CAUSE, averting that he received no telephonic notice or request from the court or Judge Shumate, to prepare an "Order and Judgment." (**Record, page 68**)

19. On 27 October 1994, Petitioner caused a NOTICE TO SUBMIT FOR DECISION to be filed for Petitioner's MOTION FOR AN ORDER FROM WHICH TO APPEAL. (**Record, page 71**)

20. On 1 November 1994, a NOTICE was sent to all parties advising them of a hearing scheduled for 22 November 1994.. (**Record, page 74**)

21. On or about 28 October 1994, Respondent caused to be filed a REQUEST FOR HEARING (**Record, page 73**)

22. On 22 November 1994, a hearing was held on Petitioner's MOTION FOR AN ORDER FROM WHICH TO APPEAL. (**Record, page 76**)

23. On or about 22 December 1994, Respondent caused to be filed a proposed Order and Judgment of Dismissal. (**Record, page 79**)

24. On 27 December 1994, the Court caused to be entered an ORDER AND JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL, broadly stating "Justice Courts have been granted jurisdiction to issue process by statute (**Record, page 79**)

27. On 23 January 1995, Plaintiff filed his NOTICE OF APPEAL with the Court below. (**Record, page 81**)

### **Statement of the Facts**

1. On or about 5 - 3 -, 94 (3 May, 1994?), Petitioner/Appellant was handed a St. George Police Department UNIFORM CITATION OR INFORMATION AND NOTICE TO APPEAR. (**Record pp. 3 ¶ #1** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 8** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit A])

2. Said UNIFORM CITATION OR INFORMATION AND NOTICE TO APPEAR stated on the back that “This citation is not an information and will not be used as an information without your consent.” (**Record pp. 3 ¶ #2** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 9** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit B])

3. Petitioner did not consent to the use of the above referenced UNIFORM CITATION OR INFORMATION AND NOTICE TO APPEAR and thereafter entered his appearance pursuant to the UNIFORM CITATION OR INFORMATION AND NOTICE TO APPEAR by letter on or about 13 May 1994. (**Record pp. 3 ¶ #3** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 10** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit C])

4. Apparently as a consequence to Petitioner’s 13 May letter, referenced in ¶ #3 immediately above, the Washington County Attorney, Eric Ludlow, authorized the issuance of an INFORMATION, signed and dated June 6, 1994. (**Record pp. 3 ¶ #4** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 11** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit D])

5. Apparently as a consequence to the INFORMATION referred to in ¶ #4 immediately above, Respondent Dobson, Washington County Justice of the Peace, issued a SUMMONS on 6.9.94 (9 June 1994?), pursuant to the aforesaid INFORMATION. (**Record pp. 3 ¶ #5** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 12** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit E])

6. On or about 17 June 1994, the above referenced INFORMATION and SUMMONS were delivered to one (1) Don Wisden, the brother of the Petitioner in this cause of action. (**Record pp. 3 ¶ #6** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **11 & 12** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibits D & E])

7. The SUMMONS, delivered to the Petitioner's brother was not endorsed pursuant to *Rule 4(k), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure*<sup>1</sup>. (**Record pp. 4 ¶ #7** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 12** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit E])

8. On or about 18 June 1994, a police officer, identified only as P015, filed a RETURN OF SERVICE with the Respondent, Justice Court. (*Exhibit F to original PETITION*) (**Record pp. 4 ¶ #8** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 13** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit F])

9. The RETURN OF SERVICE, filed with the Respondent, Justice Court, does not contain a statement as to endorsement, date, place and manner of service<sup>2</sup> showing the officer complied with the rules governing service of process.<sup>3</sup> (**Record pp. 4 ¶ #9** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **& 13** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit F])

10. On or about 22 June 1994, Petitioner caused to be filed with the Respondent, Justice Court, a MOTION TO QUASH SUMMONS and a MOTION TO DISMISS, for improper service of process of the original SUMMONS and INFORMATION, filing of a fraudulent RETURN OF SERVICE by the police officer identified only as P015, and lack of personal jurisdiction to the Respondent, Justice Court, for insufficiency of process. (**Record pp. 4 ¶ #10** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], **14, 15 & 13** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibits G, H, & F])

---

<sup>1</sup> *Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 3(b)* — "Service upon the attorney or upon a party shall be made in the manner provided in civil actions."

<sup>2</sup> *Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 6(c)(3)* — "The summons shall be served as in civil actions ....."

<sup>3</sup> *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 4(g)* — "..... with a statement as to date, place and manner of service."  
<sup>3</sup> "There was no jurisdiction over ['Petitioner'] where peace officer falsely stated in return of service that date, place of address of service and signature had been endorsed on summons." *Martin - vs - Nelson*, 533 P.2d 897 (Utah 1975)

11. Respondent Richard M. Dobson, Justice of the Peace, did not allow the appropriate time to pass for response by the opposing party to Petitioner's motions in the justice court, pursuant to the Rules of Procedure regarding filing and response to motions. **(Record p. 4 ¶ #11 [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION])**

12. On or about 27 June 1994, Respondent Dobson caused to be mailed a copy of another document, another SUMMONS which was apparently filed with the Respondent, Justice Court, at the same time the RETURN OF SERVICE was filed with the Respondent, Justice Court. **(Record pp. 5 ¶ #12 [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], & 21 [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibit I])**

13. The SUMMONS, *Exhibit E to the original PETITION* in this matter, is not the same document as the SUMMONS, *Exhibit I to the original PETITION*. **(Record pp. 5 ¶ #13 [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION], 12 & 21 [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION — Exhibits E & I])**

14. On or about 30 June 1994, Respondent Dobson summarily denied Petitioner's motions to the Justice Court, claimed he possessed jurisdiction over the person and the subject matter regarding the Petitioner in his court, and proceeded with the arraignment scheduled on the date of the SUMMONS, even though jurisdiction had been challenged that Petitioner had not received proper summons or service or process. **(Record p. 5 ¶ #14 [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION])**

15. Standing Petitioner's 13 May 1994, appearance by letter, and 22 June 1994 appearance by MOTION TO DISMISS on their head, by challenging the Justice Court's jurisdiction over his person, Respondent Dobson committed fraud by declaring Petitioner had failed to appear and declared Petitioner was in violation of some "official misconduct-misdemeanor," and ordered a bench warrant to be issued against the Petitioner, with a bail set at \$250. **(Record p. 5 ¶ #15 [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION])**



16. Petitioner was advised of the order of Respondent Dobson's warrant against him by telephone by Respondent Dobson's secretary on 1 July 1994. (**Record p. 5 ¶ #16** [PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION])

17. Petitioner proceeded with this case in the District Court, there being no other remedy available to him to prevent an obvious effort by the Respondent to violate his rights and deprive him of his liberty in a manifest absence of jurisdiction. (**Record**)

18. Subsequent to the filing of this appeal, Respondent Dobson issued a BENCH WARRANT, and Petitioner was arrested on 29 August 1995. (**Not in Record**)

19. The Petitioner/Appellant also filed an AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE to recuse Judge Shumate on the basis of manifest bias. Such attempt at recusal was denied Petitioner in the Court Below. (**Record p. 36** [AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE])

## **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS**

**POINT 1.** Plaintiff argues that the District Court below did not properly apply the appropriate standard of review for a MOTION TO DISMISS. Respondent incorrectly argued an issue that was simply off point to Petitioner's cause of action.

The District Court below accepted no argument from the parties and offered no insight in its ORDER AND JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL which broadly stated, "The Petition fails to state a claim upon which the relief sought may be granted."

The District Court below went on to state that Petitioner's "[C]laim is frivolous on its face because other ordinary remedies such as appeal exist ....."

**POINT 2.** Plaintiff argues that his PETITION FOR WRIT OF

PROHIBITION succinctly stated a claim for which relief may be granted.

Respondent argues that Lancaster v. Utah Board of Pardons, 869 P.2d 945, grants the Justice of the Peace, broad discretion in assuming jurisdiction where no other court in the land possess such authority.

The District Court below stands the facts of this case on their head and completely disregards their application to Petitioner's cause of action.

Petitioner argues that Lancaster is not even applicable to the facts of this case, and that various other Utah appellate decisions support his allegations and grievances of non-action in the Justice Court; and, usurpation of jurisdiction and abuse of judicial authority by the Respondent Dobson.

## **ARGUMENT**

### **POINT 1. DID THE DISTRICT COURT ERR IN GRANTING RESPONDENTS MOTION TO DISMISS**

The standard of review is well established where it comes to motions to dismiss. MOUNTEER v. UTAH POWER & LIGHT CO., 823 P.2d 1055 (Utah 1991) Petitioner is entitled to all inferences made, with regards to his PETITION FOR A WRIT OF PROHIBITION, to be construed in his favor, and his facts alleged to be accepted as true by the reviewing court.

Petitioner sought extraordinary relief in the District Court below because there was no other available and speedy remedy to prevent the Justice Court from exercising unlawful jurisdiction and depriving Petitioner of his liberty, where it had **not** first obtained jurisdiction over the Petitioner's person by proper service, or subject matter jurisdiction by properly authorized INFORMATION, where Petitioner appeared and specifically objected to prosecution by a citation.

On the other hand, the District Court below bent over backwards to prevent Petitioner from a speedy remedy. Examples abound in this case to demonstrate how the Court bumbled about to prevent Petitioner a speedy remedy before it finally provided Petitioner the appropriate opportunity to proceed to this appeal.

Petitioner, likewise, stated a claim on which relief may be granted, which will be more fully explored in **POINT 2** of this Argument.

**POINT 2.** WAS PETITIONER DENIED DUE PROCESS IN THE JUSTICE COURT AND THEREFORE ENTITLED, IN THIS CASE, TO EXTRAORDINARY RELIEF, IN THE FORM OF PROHIBITION, FROM THE DISTRICT COURT, OR IN OTHER WORDS, DID PETITIONER STATE A CLAIM ON WHICH RELIEF MAY BE GRANTED?

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