1995

Joseph M. Wisden v. Richard M. Dobson : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

POINT I: Respondent argues that the issues raised in Petitioner's appeal before this Court are moot because Petitioner has appeared before the Justice Court, and entered a plea of no contest to the charge in the Information filed in that court.

POINT II: Respondent argues that a Petition for Extraordinary Relief is not an appropriate remedy to address Petitioner's claim of lack of personal jurisdiction because other plain, speedy and adequate remedies exist.

POINT III: Respondent argues that the trial court properly dismissed Petitioner's Petition for Extraordinary Relief for failure to state a claim upon which relief may be granted. First, other plain, speedy and adequate remedies exist to treat Petitioner's claim, and, second, the record, even interpreted in a light most favorable to Petitioner, establishes that the Justice Court obtained jurisdiction over Petitioner's person.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

Petitioner's failure to move for stay of proceedings in the Justice Court, his plea of no contest to the charge of expired registration and his sentencing by the Respondent has rendered the issues pending in this appeal moot.

The facts asserted by Petitioner, as supplemented in Respondent's Brief, establish that Petitioner, by petitioning for extraordinary relief in the Fifth District Court, sought to prevent Respondent from proceeding with the charges pending in the Justice Court on grounds that the Justice Court lacked personal jurisdiction over the Petitioner. When the Petition for extraordinary relief was denied by the Honorable James L. Shumate, Petitioner could have sought a Stay of Proceedings in the Fifth District Court, the Utah Supreme Court, or the Utah Court of Appeals. The record before this Court on appeal, however, is devoid of any request by Petitioner for a Stay of Proceedings in the Justice Court as required by Utah Rules of Procedure. See Rule 62, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure; Rule 27, Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure; Rule 8, Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Therefore, when the Petitioner appeared in the Justice Court on August 29, 1995, entered a plea of no contest and was sentenced, he rendered the relief sought on the appeal before this Court moot. The proceedings Petitioner sought to prohibit by means of the Petition have been conducted and concluded. Certified Docket Entries, Appendix.

The Utah Supreme Court has stated: "Where the requested judicial relief can no longer affect the rights of the litigants, the case is moot and a court will normally refrain from adjudicating it on the merits." Spain v. Stewart, 639 P.2d 166 at P.168 (1981) (emphasis added). In Spain, the Petitioner had sought a Writ of Habeas Corpus because he had been held without prompt judicial review of his incarceration. The Utah Supreme Court ruled that when the Petitioner had been taken before a magistrate it mooted his request for relief and the District Court was correct in dismissing the petition for a Writ. Cf. Boss v. Benson, 592 P.2d 536 (Ok. 1979) (Court of Criminal Appeals determined that the filing of any action to prohibit a judge from conducting further proceedings in a criminal case was made moot by the subsequent filing of a properly verified information).

Respondent could not raise this issue sooner because Petitioner did not enter his plea until August 29, 1995. See Respondent's Suggestion of Mootness Motion for Order of Dismissal; Certified Docket Entries, Appendix.

In the case before this Court, Petitioner's failure to seek a stay of proceedings, together with his participation in and conclusion of the proceeding in the Justice Court, render the issue raised in this appeal moot and Respondent respectfully requests that this court affirm the trial court's order of dismissal.

POINT II.

A Petition for Extraordinary Relief under Rule 65B of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure is not the appropriate remedy to treat Petitioner's claim that the Justice Court lacked personal jurisdiction because of improper service of process.

A. Rule 65B Petition for Extraordinary Relief is an appropriate remedy only where another plain, speedy or adequate remedy does not exist.

The form of petition provided under Rule 65B(e) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure stems from the common law petition for writ of prohibition. See generally 63A Am. Jur. 2d Prohibition §§ 1, et. seq., (1984 and Supp. 1995). In the common law, this writ was used to prevent an inferior tribunal, judicial or quasi-judicial, from "exercising jurisdiction over matters not within its cognisance or exceeding its jurisdiction in matters of which it has cognisance." 63A Am. Jur. 2d Prohibition § 2 (1984). It was not a remedy for "general review" and was used with "great caution and forbearance for the furtherance of justice . . . where no other regular or ordinary remedy" existed. Olson v. District Court, Second Judicial Dist., In and for Davis County, 147 P.2d 471, 472-73 (Utah 1944); State ex. rel. O'Brien v. Police Court of Seattle, 128 P.2d 332 (Wash. 1942) (discussing nature of writ of prohibition); Van Cott v. Turner, 56 P.2d 16, 20 (Utah 1936) ("The Writ of Prohibition is a prerogative writ, the most extraordinary of all writs, to be used with caution and forbearance;" "A writ of prohibition will lie only in cases of manifest necessity . . . "). In Olson v. District Court, Second Judicial Dist., In and for Davis County, the Utah Supreme Court

explained the cautionary attitude behind this remedy. The court stated:

It requires but a moment's reflection to reveal that for the rule to be otherwise would make any lawsuit potentially a series of prohibition proceedings. Every act of the court from the initiation of the litigation to its conclusion could be made a separate prohibition proceeding. The proper and orderly procedure requires that when a court has jurisdiction of the suit, it should go ahead and complete the litigation. When this is accomplished, an appeal can be taken so that the appellate court may then review all alleged errors in one proceeding. This orderly process should not be interfered with, unless it is urgently necessary to prevent some palpable and irreparable injustice.

Id. at 473 (emphasis added).

Similar to the common law writ of prohibition, a Rule 65B(e) petition for extraordinary relief is not a remedy for general review. See Anderson v. Baker, 296 P.2d 283 (Utah 1956) (a [petition for extraordinary relief] is not a proceeding for general review and cannot be used as such). Rule 65B(e) procedures are reserved for situations where "no other plain, speedy and adequate remedy is available" to the petitioner and any of the following grounds exist:

(A) an inferior court, administrative agency, or officer exercising judicial functions has exceeded its jurisdiction or abused its discretion;

(B) an inferior court, administrative agency, corporation or person has failed to perform an act

required by law as a duty of office, trust or station;
or

(C) an inferior court, administrative agency, corporation or person has refused the petitioner the use or enjoyment of a right or office to which the petitioner is entitled. U.R.C.P 65(a) and (e).

"The question as to what constitutes a plain, speedy, and adequate remedy is not dependent upon any general rule, but upon the facts of each particular case" Police Court of Seattle, 128 P.2d at 336 (emphasis added).

A remedy is not inadequate merely because it is attended with delay, expense, annoyance, or even some hardship. There must be something in the nature of the action or proceeding that makes it apparent to this court that it will not be able to protect the rights of the litigants or afford them adequate redress otherwise than through the [writ of prohibition]."

Id (citations omitted) (emphasis added).

B. Rule 65B Petition for Extraordinary Relief is not appropriate remedy in the present case because other adequate remedies exist to address Petitioner's claim.

In the present case, a Rule 65B(e) petition for extraordinary relief is not an appropriate remedy because other adequate remedies exist to address Petitioner's claim. First, Petitioner could have pursued a trial de novo in the circuit court, U.C.A. § 78-5-120 (1992), and challenged the Justice Court's jurisdiction. See, e.g., Kansas City Hdwe. Co. v. Neilson, 36 P. 131 (Utah 1898) (district court was required to

reverse if justices' court had no jurisdiction because wrong venue was shown).

Second, Petitioner could have pursued a standard appeal in the proper appellate court. See Rule 26, Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure and Rules 3 and 4 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Third, Petitioner could have sought an interlocutory review of the Justice Court's ruling. See Rule 5 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure; Manwill v. Oyler, 361 P.2d 177 (Utah 1961) (if it appears essential to adjudicate principles of law or procedure in advance as a necessary foundation upon which the trial may proceed, or if there is a high likelihood that the litigation can be finally disposed of on such an appeal, an interlocutory appeal is an appropriate procedure).

The Respondent argues that any one of these remedies are adequate to address the Petitioner's claim and, at a minimum, should have been pursued and exhausted before seeking a Rule 65B(e) Petition for Extraordinary Relief. On this basis, therefore, the Respondent moves the court to affirm the trial court's order of dismissal.

POINT III.

The trial court properly dismissed Petitioner's Petition for Extraordinary Relief for failure to state a claim upon which relief may be granted.

The Petitioner contends that the trial court improperly dismissed his Petition for Extraordinary Relief for failing to

state a claim upon which relief may be granted. The Respondent refutes this contention and, again, moves the court to affirm the trial court's ruling of dismissal.

Under Rule 65B(e), a party may petition the appropriate appellate court for extraordinary relief in the form of prohibition. To receive such relief, a petitioner must show that "no other plain, speedy and adequate remedy is available," and that "an inferior court, administrative agency, or officer exercising judicial functions has exceeded its jurisdiction or abused its discretion . . . or . . . has refused the petitioner the use or enjoyment of a right or office to which the petitioner is entitled." Ut.R.C.P. 65B(e)(1)(A),(C).

Pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, a petition for extraordinary relief that fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted may properly be dismissed. See Lancaster v. Utah Bd. of Pardons, 869 P.2d 945 (Utah 1994) (court affirmed trial court's summary dismissal of petition for extraordinary relief stating, "[a] petition of any nature which fails to state a claim may be dismissed.").

In St. Benedict's Development Co. v. St. Benedict's Hosp., 811 P.2d 194 (Utah 1991), the Utah Supreme Court explained the nature and standard of the Rule 12(b)(6) motion to dismiss. The court stated:

A rule 12(b)(6) motion to dismiss admits the facts alleged in the complaint but challenges the plaintiff's right to relief based on those facts. When determining whether a trial court properly granted a rule 12(b)(6)

motion to dismiss, we accept the factual allegations in the complaint as true and consider them and all reasonable inferences to be drawn from them in light most favorable to the plaintiff.

Id. at 196.

The Respondent argues that even under this liberal standard Petitioner fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted. First, as explained above, in **Point II**, other plain, speedy and adequate remedies are available to address Petitioner's claim. Therefore, on this ground alone, the trial court properly dismissed the Petition for Extraordinary Relief.

There is also a second reason the trial court properly dismissed the Petition. This is apparent from reviewing the record. Petitioner claims that the Summons served upon him at his brother's residence was not properly endorsed according to Rule 4(k) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and, therefore, service was improper. For this reason, the Petitioner argues that the Justice Court failed to obtain jurisdiction over his person. Even assuming, *arguendo*, the correctness of this claim, the Respondent maintains that the undisputed facts establish that the Justice Court obtained jurisdiction over the Petitioner's person, for either of two reasons.

First, the Respondent argues, the Justice Court acquired jurisdiction over the Petitioner by means of the Uniform Citation and Notice to Appear issued to the Petitioner on the 3rd of May, 1994. (Record at 8 and 9); see U.C.A. § 77-7-20, "Service of citation on defendant -- Filing in court -- Contents of

citation," (1992). By acknowledging and agreeing to its terms, the Petitioner subjected himself to the jurisdiction of the Justice Court. The Petitioner received notice of the charge against him and agreed to appear. The fact that the Petitioner requested a formal information be filed against him, and that a formal information was filed, did not change the jurisdiction of the Justice Court.

Second, the Respondent argues, the Justice Court acquired jurisdiction over the Petitioner's person by means of the Summons served upon the Petitioner by certified mail on or about the 29th of June, 1994. (Record at 19); Certified Docket Entries, Appendix; see Ut.R.Cr.P. 6 ("The summons shall be served as in civil actions, or by mailing it to the defendant's last known address."); Ut.R.Cr.P. 3 ("Service upon the attorney or upon a party shall be made in the manner provided in civil actions."); and, Ut.R.C.P. 4.

On these two grounds, one, that other plain, speedy and adequate remedies exist to address Petitioner's claim, and two, that the Justice court acquired jurisdiction over the Petitioner's person by either the Citation and Notice to Appear or the Summons served upon the Petitioner by certified mail, the trial court, properly dismissed the Petition for Extraordinary Relief for failing to state a claim upon which relief may be granted. The Respondent, therefore, respectfully moves this court to affirm the trial court's ruling.

CONCLUSION

On the grounds explained in **Points I, II and III**, above, the Respondent respectfully moves this court to affirm the trial court's order of dismissal.